ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COMMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 24, 2011
3:30 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Donald 4 son, Chair
Senat or Thomas WAgoner
Senat or Linda Menard

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Al bert Kookesh
Senat or Johnny Ellis

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1 son

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON:  PLANNI NG FOR ALASKA' S REG ONAL PORTS AND HARBORS
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

PAT BURDEN, President and Princi pal Econom st

Nort hern Econom cs

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the report, Al aska Regional Ports:
Pl anning for Alaska's Ports and Harbors.

DONALD FORE

U.S. Arny Corps of Engineers

Eagl e River, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered a question regarding federal funds
for the maintenance of ports and harbors in Al aska.

JEFF OTTESEN, Director

Di vi sion of Program Devel opnent
Departnent of Transportation

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- March 24, 2011



Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Di scussed the wuse of Public Private
Partnerships as a potential nethod of funding ports and harbors
in Al aska.

ED FOGELS, Deputy Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Natural Resources

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a presentation on the Statewide Digita
Mapping Initiative (SDM).

NI CK MASTRODI CASA, Project Manager

Statewide Digital Mapping Initiative Project

Di vision of Statew de Aviation

Depart ment of Transportation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions  of the committee
regardi ng SDM .

M KE O HARE, Deputy Director

Division of Honel and Security and Energency  Managenent
Departnment of Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs (DWA)

Fort Ri chardson, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the inportance of SDM from a
homel and security and energency standpoint.

LARRY DI ETRI CK, Director

Division of Spill Prevention and Response

Depart ment of Environmental Conservation

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Highlighted sonme of the items in the
Planning for Alaska's Ports and Harbors report that relates to
spill prevention and response.

SUSAN BELL, Commi ssi oner

Department of Commerce, Conmmunity and Econom c Devel opnent
( DCCED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the Planning for Al aska's Ports
and Harbors report and discussed DCCED s role in the devel oprment
of ports and harbors in Al aska.

BOB PAW.OABKI, Legi sl ative Liaison

Denal i Comm ssi on

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Discussed the Denali Conmission's role in
t he devel opnent of ports and harbors in Al aska.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- March 24, 2011



LARRY COTTER, CEO

Aleutian Island Comrunity Devel opnent Association (APICDA) and
Chair

Western Al aska Conmunity Devel opnent Associ ati on (WACDA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the inportance of harbors and
ports of refuge in Alaska, specifically along the Aleutian
Chai n, and answered questions of the commttee.

MATT GANLEY, Vice President
Land and Resources
Bering Straits Native Corporation (BSNC)

Nonme, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Discussed the inportance of obtaining Port
Clarence as a potential port of refuge and for spill response in

Bering Strait.

MARK DAVI S, O ficer

Econom c Devel opnent

Al aska I ndustrial Devel opnent & Export Authority (Al DEA)
Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity and Econom ¢ Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the Planning for Al aska's Ports
and Harbors report and di scussed sone of the current and future
port and harbor projects AIDEA is involved wth.

CHRI STI NE KLEI'N, Executive Vice President and COO

Calista Corporation

Bet hel , Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Enphasi zed the inportance of state funding
for Alaska's ports and harbors, pointed out some issues in the
Planning for Al aska's Ports and Harbors report, and answered
gquestions of the commttee.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:30: 21 PM
SENATOR MENARD call ed the Senate Community and Regional Affairs
Standing Committee neeting to order at 3:30 p.m Present at the
call to order was Senator Menard. Chair Oson arrived shortly
t hereafter.

3:31:08 PM

SENATOR MENARD presented a short film clip depicting the Knik
Arm Bridge and Toll Authority (KABATA) from Port Mackenzie to
the Port of Anchorage. She noted that a recommendation from the

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- March 24, 2011



Federal H ghway Adm nistration has been received. She added that
DVDs of the clip are avail abl e.

SENATOR MENARD turned the gavel over to Chair Ason at 3:32 p. m

PRESENTATI ON:  PLANNI NG FOR ALASKA' S REG ONAL PORTS AND HARBORS

3:32:17 PM

CHAIR OLSON announced that the order of business would be to
hear a presentation regarding the recent release of a study on
pl anning for Al aska's regional ports and harbors.

3:33:10 PM

PAT  BURDEN, Pr esi dent and Princi pal Economi st , Nor t her n
Economi cs, presented a report titled Al aska Regional Ports:
Planning for Alaska's Ports and Harbors. He said that the report
was created for the US Arny Corps of Engineers (USACE) and the
Departnment of Transportation (DOT) [Report included in the
docunent packet].

He turned to his presentation [included in the docunent packet].
Slide 3 discussed the purpose of the study and how it
originated. He explained that in January 2008, USACE sponsored
the first Alaska Regional Ports Conference. The conference
hi ghli ghted the need for a collaborative planning effort between
the entities that were engaged in port and harbor devel opnment in
the state. He noted that at that tinme there was no statew de map
or plan for port and harbor developnment. During the conference
partici pants recomended devel opnent of a conprehensive naster
plan to address the marine transportation challenges faced by
the state. He explained that a master plan would encourage the
coordination of facilities and resources, resulting in a nore
functional system This would allow the state to better address
the needs of its population and industries relying on marine
transportation. In order to properly draft such a docunent
research on global trends, regional netwrks, and the current
and future needs of Al aska was required.

Slide 4 laid out the scope of work for Al aska regional ports,
whi ch was conducted by URS Corporation, Northern Econom cs, and
RISE Al aska LLC. He said that in order to develop the scope of
wor k, there were six basic tasks that needed to be undertaken.

3:37:22 PM
SENATOR WAGONER j oi ned the comm ttee.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- March 24, 2011



MR. BURDEN continued with his presentation. Slide 5 discussed
the first task: the strategic trends report. This report
summarized the trends in the maritinme transportation industry on
both a global scale and in the state of Alaska. The report
| ooked at:

* International developnents in operations and facilities
such as new shipping routes, trade patterns, and port
owner shi p.

e Trends in demand for Alaska maritine operations and
facilities such as resource industry developnments and
energency response needs and the absence of harbors of
refuge in Western Al aska.

» Assessnent of shipping and port developnent issues in
Al aska.

* Port and har bor i nvest ment needs and fi nanci ng
opportunities.

Slide 6 discussed the second task: the baseline assessnment of
existing ports and harbors in Al aska. He explained that USACE
conducted a mmiled survey to owners of private and public port
and harbor facilities. These results established the basis for
describing existing port and harbor infrastructures, attributes,

and needs. He explained that the assessnent also included
secondary materials such as financial statenents, budgets, and
transportation plans to illustrate how different facilities are
governed and financed. Using the information from the survey as
a base, databases of port and harbor projects from the USACE

DOT, and the Denali Comm ssion were incorporated to create a
conprehensive statewide |list of needs. He noted that the list is
a work in progress and will continue in the future.

Slide 7 described the third task: the prelimnary identification
of regional and subregional hubs. He explained that hubs were
identified through a systens approach, where facilities with the
| argest network inpacts nay beconme focal points for inproving
regional transportation. Hubs were determ ned through industry
interviews and were vetted with a project advisory group.

MR. BURDEN explained that regional hubs represent the primary
ports of entry for goods noving into or out of the state and
regi on. Whil e subregional hubs are primarily used for
di stributing goods from the regional hubs to elsewhere in the
region. He enphasized that while Northern Econom cs believes
hubs should receive a priority there are a nunber of criteria
that shoul d be used to rank projects.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- March 24, 2011



3:42:00 PM
Slide 8 was a map and list of regional and subregi onal hubs that
were identified in the report.

Slide 9 discussed the fourth plan: to devel op appropriate policy
and plan developnment. He explained that Northern Econom cs
identified inpedinments to efficient port and harbor devel opnent
and recomended inprovenents in the way federal, state, and
| ocal governnents work together and facilitate devel opnent. The
recommendations that were provided canme from stakehol der
i ntervi ews, l[iterature reviews, and experience wth the
i ndustry. The report identifies a nunber of areas of potentia
i mprovenent, including:

* Communi cati on

e Coordination in planning
e Project prioritization

* Regional participation

* New thoughts on fundi ng

Slide 10 included the fifth task: the Regional Port and Harbors
Conference. The conference was held to share information on
statewide port and harbor progress since the first Port and
Har bors conference in 2008. USACE and RI SE Al aska organi zed and
sponsored the conference; Northern Econom cs participated as
speakers and aided in material presentation.

Slide 11 discussed the sixth task: the final plan preparation.
He said that based on the input from the conference, Northern
Econom cs revised the draft plans and posted the Final Plan for
public comrent. He noted that this public coment period was
extended to March 31, 2011. He said that while it is not
expected that the final plan will be nodified, the coments
received may be used in future revisions to the plan.

3:44: 26 PM

CHAIR OLSON said the maintenance of ports and harbors that is
bei ng given back to municipalities appears to be a fairly |arge
issue. He asked if Northern Economcs took into consideration
t he expense and the ease of maintaining these ports and harbors.

MR. BURDEN replied that the need for sustainability of the ports
and harbors was discussed. He noted that Northern Econonics has
been working with a nunber of comunities around the state in
order to maintain financial stability. He explained that often

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- March 24, 2011



these facilities are being subsidized through the general fund,
rat her than being nmaintained through appropriate user charges.

CHAIR OLSON asked about federal funds related to ongoing
mai nt enance of ports and harbors.

MR. BURDEN replied that he is unaware of any federal funds for
har bor mai nt enance.

3:45: 47 PM

DONALD FORE, US Arny Corps of Engineers (USACE), replied that
nati onwi de, USACE has a nmintenance program for federally
authorized projects. Typically there is not enough funding to
mai ntain these projects properly. He noted that it 1is no
different in Al aska.

SENATOR WAGONER commented that a heavier enphasis needs to be
made on comunication wth individuals who own ports and
harbors. From his own personal experiences, he observed that it
appears there are large discrepancies in the charges that owners
are nmaking in order to house a vessel. He said that "it all goes
back to the fact that Al askans have gotten sonething for nothing
for so long that they are unwilling to pay for the services they
get." He said that this cuts through the entire problem wth
regard to fees for nmaintenance.

3:47:40 PM

JEFF  OITESEN, Director, D vision of Program Devel opnent,
Departnment of Transportation, discussed the wuse of Public
Private Partnerships (PPP) as a potential nethod of funding
ports and harbors in Al aska. He explained that his division |ed
the port study for DOT. He noted that M. Burden did a great job
in sunmarizing the overall report. He said that PPP mght be a
financing technique that could be used for port and harbor work.
PPP has been used in the past in the United States and has
become very wdely wused in Europe and Asia. This type of
partnership is nore recent in North Anerica, though several
states are using it, which includes Al aska's KABATA project. He
noted that AIDEA [Alaska Industrial Devel opmrent & Export
Aut hority] has many of the characteristics of a PPP, though it
is not precisely the sanme. He explained that in this type of
partnership a firmis hired, which takes on nuch of the risk:
this includes the acquisition of financing, the design and
building of the structure, and, ultimately, the operation and
mai nt enance of the facility for some period of time. Typically
at sone point the facility is handed back to the public entity
that authorized the construction. He explained that the key is

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- March 24, 2011



there needs to be a bankable project with a robust base of users
who are willing to pay fees and will ultimately support the PPP

3:50: 22 PM

MR. OITESEN noted that this can't be done when there are thin
econom cs, but rather the kind of robust economcs that wll
satisfy Wallstreet. He explained that while PPPs have, in the
past, been focused on "nega projects,” the focus has changed to
smal |l er projects. He sumarized that PPP is an old idea that is
worth new consideration. However, it wll not be ideal for
Al aska's econom cs because of geographical distance, terrain,
and thin population. He explained that there was an agreenent
bet ween the USACE and DOT to | ook into PPPs.

He said that there is a followup study that has been requested
in the Legislative Capital Budget to | ook at specific port needs
for larger vessels on the western and northern coasts of Al aska.
This study would focus on ports that would serve the export of
commodi ties, patrol needs of the Coast Guard and NOAA [Nationa
Cceanic and Atnospheric Admnistration], and act as a port of
refuge. He noted that there are very few natural harbors along
the western and northern coast of Alaska; the Coast CGuard, Navy,
and Al aska's congressional delegation are very interested in
this study.

3:53:48 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked, with regard to Public Private Partnerships,
what the ideal ratio between public noney versus private noney
m ght be.

MR. OITESEN answered that PPPs seem to focus on projects that
have sufficient revenue to <cover sonme of the risks. He
reiterated that very robust economics is needed. He noted that
it wll not be easy to apply PPP in rural Al aska because of cost
and | ow popul ati on.

CHAIR OLSON asked if the population that would use KABATA is
| arge enough to avoid using a |arge anmount of public funds.

MR. OITESEN replied yes. He explained that the predictions of
growh show that the Mtanuska Susitna Valley is one of the
fastest grow ng boroughs in the state and is |ocated right next
to Alaska's "largest economic engine." He said "that would be
the sweet spot for a [PPP] in Alaska; that would be the kind of
project that woul d nmake it happen.”

SENATOR MENARD said "I |ike that answer."

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- March 24, 2011



3:56: 58 PM

ED FOCELS, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Natural Resources,
gave a presentation on the Statewide Digital Mpping Initiative
(SDM) [Power Point presentation included in the docunent
packet]. He explained that his presentation relates to the
di scussion at hand because the state wants to, in its evaluation
of port facilities in northwestern Al aska, better its mapping of
that area. He explained that SDM is trying to get a good
digital elevation nodel (DEM of the terrain in northwest
Al aska.

Slide 2 of the presentation included the m ssion statenent of
SDM :

Al aska's Statewide Digital Mpping Initiative is an
i nteragency effort to produce high-resolution, digital
base maps of the entire state.

Slide 3 was a background on SDM. The initiative was created
with a nenorandum of agreenment with the following state
depart nments:

» Departnent of Natural Resources

e Departnent of Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs

e Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities

e Departnent of Fish and Gane

* Departnent of Environnmental Conservation

* Departnent of Commerce, Community and Econoni c Devel opnent
* University of Al aska

Slide 4 addressed the problem statenent: Alaska's current base
map consists of 40 to 50 year-old United States Geol ogical
Survey (USGS) naps.

Slide 5 included an exanple of an old USGS topographical nap
from 1962. He explained that these maps are not only non-
digital, but are inaccurate terrain nodels. He said that sone of
the planets |like Mars and Venus have been mapped nore accurately
t han Al aska by the federal governnent.

Slide 6 discussed the inportance of DEM He explained that DEM
is the resource for all other resource data layers and if it is
i naccurate then satellite i mages cannot be rectified.

4:04: 42 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 9- March 24, 2011



MR. FOGELS continued with his presentation. Slide 7 was an
exanple of a Landsat 7 image that was draped over the national
el evation dataset (NED). He explained that the inmge shows
rivers that flow up and down the sides of nountains. He stressed
the inmportance of having an accurate terrain nodel for
i ndi viduals such as pilots who have to take into account the
i naccuracies of the nodels they rely on.

Slide 8 gave the funding history of SDM :

e FY2007 - $2 mllion CIP [Capital |[|nprovenent Projects]
Fundi ng

* FY2008 - $2 million C P Funding
* FY2009 - $2 nmillion CI P Funding

Slide 9 included sone of the acconplishnments that have been made
wi th those funds. These i ncl ude:

» Alaska Mapped Wb Portal - where satellite inmagery and
digital elevation data is collected and available to the
publi c.

* Purchased new statew de SPOT 2.5 neter inmagery coverage.

e Purchased 20 foot contour interval DEM for 15 percent of
t he state.

MR. FOGELS noted that the final bullet point is the nost
pertinent to the current discussion.

Slide 10 included a nore detailed discussion on the Al aska
Mapped Wb Portal. He noted that it is the distribution site for
Al aska i magery and el evation data. This web portal is nanaged by
the University of Alaska Fairbanks and is a public website:
www. al askamapped. org.

Slide 11 was a screen shot of the website.

Slide 12 was another image fromthe website. He noted that it is
simlar to Google Earth for Al aska. He explained that the imge
in the presentation is a zoomin of the port facility at the Red
Dog Mne and that this is a very accurate satellite imge. On
the wupper right hand side of the image, the picture becones

fuzzy, which illustrates where the good imagery stops and the
old inmagery begins. He noted that once the SPOT 2.5 neter data
is acquired, this imagery wll inprove.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -10- March 24, 2011



Slide 13 gave an overview of the web portal. He explained that
DNR has pulled in data from over 17 agencies and acquired over
84 mllion acres of high-resolution imgery and 18 mllion acres
of high-resolution elevation data. He reiterated that all of
this data is available to the public.

Slide 14 discussed the statew de inmgery coverage. He explained
that DNR has purchased full satellite imgery for the entire
state. He noted that this was done with $2 nillion of CP
funding and $2.6 nillion worth of federal coastal i npact
assessnent funds. He noted that DNR expects to conplete this
proj ect by 2013.

Slide 15 showed the satellite imagery that has already been
col | ect ed.

Slide 16 discussed the statew de DEM partnership. He noted that
the remaining $2 mllion of CIP funding along with federal funds
was used to purchase the DEM nodel for 15 percent of Al aska.

Slide 17 showed, in red, the area that was purchased. It also
broke down what area the state paid for and what the federa
agencies paid for.

Slide 18 discussed what needs to be done in the future wth
regard to SDM. He renminded the commttee that 85 percent of the
state still needs DEM

MR. FOGELS noted that, with regard to ports and harbors, DNR s
next target wll, hopefully, be the acquisition of DEM for
Nort hwest Al aska. He explained that this will enable the state
to better study the northwest for feasible port sights. He said
that N ck Mastrodicasa, with DOI, is on the digital mapping
technical team and has spearheaded the effort to collect the
DEM

He concluded that it is inportant for Alaska to get a better
base map. He noted that DNR has a very tight relationship with
DOT and ot her agencies on this project.

4:08:17 PM
SENATOR MENARD asked if DNR has used Google Earth as a resource.

4:08: 47 PM

NIl CK MASTRODI CASA, Project Mnager, Statewide Digital Mpping
Initiative Project, Division of Statew de Aviation, Departnent
of Transportation, replied that Google purchased all of the data

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -11- March 24, 2011



from a data aggregator and this data already exists in Al aska
archives. Google did not acquire the data for Al aska and did not
acquire any el evation dat a.

CHAIR OLSON asked for <confirmation that the nmaps used by
avi ators are inaccurate.

MR. MASTRODI CASA replied yes.

CHAI R OLSON asked for clarification that these charts are based
of f of 1962 USGS surveys.

MR. MASTRCDI CASA replied that the USGS surveys began in 1948 and
ran through the md to late 1950's. He explained that the FAA
[ Federal Aviation Administration] has to correct the data on the
maps all the tinme in sectionals. He said that the ADSB
[aut omati ¢ dependence surveill ance-broadcast] and the Capstone
program have to be altered due to the inaccuracies in the
el evation data. He explained that if the data that is currently
avai l able was put into the cockpit "you could potentially kil
sonebody. "

CHAIR OLSON asked what the estinmated cost for nmapping the
remai ni ng 85 percent of Al aska woul d be.

MR. MASTRODI CASA replied about $48 mllion. He explained that
federal funding would cover 73 percent of the cost and the
remai ni ng 27 percent would be covered by the state.

4:10: 37 PM
M KE O HARE, Deputy Director, D vision of Honeland Security and
Emergency Managenent, Departnent of Mlitary and Veterans

Affairs (DWA), said that SDM addresses the full spectrum of
many agencies and its mssions. Wth regard to the Division of
Honel and Security and Enmergency Mnagenent, if an energency
pl anner used CGoogle Earth to locate a shelter, for exanple, it
may be "a mle off and sitting in a river." He explained that
for emergency planning this is very inaccurate and does not
allow for the planning efforts that are required. He reiterated
that SDM is a collaborative effort between many state and
f ederal agenci es.

4:12: 08 PM
SENATOR MENARD asked for confirmation that there was no
| egi sl ative funding in 2010.

MR. MASTRODI CASA replied that's correct.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -12- March 24, 2011



SENATOR MENARD asked for confirmation that only 15 percent of
Al aska has been digitally nmapped.

MR. MASTRODI CASA replied that's correct.

SENATOR MENARD asked for confirmation that the various state
agencies are comng to the legislature to ask for additional
f undi ng.

MR. MASTRODI CASA replied "to continue the work and |everage
agai nst federal funds."

4:12:56 PM

LARRY DI ETRICK, Director, Division of Spill Prevention and
Response, Department of Environnental Conservation, highlighted
sonme of the itens in the Planning for Alaska's Ports and Harbors
report that relates to spill prevention and response. He
explained that in order to support OCS [outer continental shelf]
devel opment in Alaska there is a great need for deep draft ports
to acconmpdate OCS activity. He stressed the inportance of
considering deep draft ports in the selection process and
identification for ports in the northern part of the state.

He said that another factor to take into consideration for port
site identification is the opening of the arctic and shipping
through the arctic that wll occur. He said that an Arctic
Marine Shipping assessnent is available that could be valuable
in terns of providing information on anticipated vessel traffic
in the arctic and through Bering Strait. He stressed that this

is a key pinch point for spill prevention and planning. There
are also concerns about vessels that nmay avoid US waters in
order to evade spill prevention response requirenents, which is

of interest to the Coast GQGuard.

He noted that there is a spill prevention response plan for the
arctic and northwest Alaska. Included in the plan is the pre-
identification of some "places of refuge,” which are areas where
vessels may anchor up and provide a safe harbor. He said that
this should also be a consideration in the selection and
identification of ports.

MR DI ETRICK pointed out that there is a disputed nmaritine
boundary at Inuvik in the Yukon Territory between Al aska and
Canada, which goes out into the Beaufort Sea. He noted that this
is an issue from a spill response perspective. He stressed the

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -13- March 24, 2011



i nportance of ports that support both off-shore devel opnment and
spill response.

4:18:14 PM
CHAIR OLSON recognized the presence of Representative Peggy
W son.

He asked M. Dietrick for confirmation that Inuvik has a port.

MR. DI ETRICK replied Tuktoyaktuk is the off-shore port; Inuvik
is the oil-support base.

CHAI R OLSON asked what kind of resources [DEC] has for off-shore
spills, especially when it is between international waters and
US control |l ed waters.

MR DIETRICK replied that in the US, on both the state and
federal level, the capacity to respond to spills is placed upon
the responsible party. It is the regulated community that has
the capacity to respond. He explained that currently in the
state, with the OCS | ease sale areas, the capacity to respond to
spills is provided by those that explore the area. For exanple,
when Shell G conducts any activity in that area it has the
necessary instrunments and plan in tact to respond, contain, and
renove the oil

4:20:13 PM

SUSAN BELL, Conmm ssioner, Departnment of Comrerce, Conmunity and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED), said the ports and harbors
infrastructure, from DCCED s perspective, is essential for both
community vitality and econom c devel opnent. She noted that the
Pl anning of Al aska's Regional Ports and Harbors report provides
a lot of current information on the state's infrastructure
needs, industry trends, and other factors to consider. It is
also in alignment with a current approach from the governor to
be | ooking at hub communities and prioritizing sonme of the ports
and areas that are going to generate econom c devel opnent. She
supported the inportance of prioritizing Al aska's ports and
| ooking at public private partnerships. She acknow edged M.
Otesen's coments on PPP and Al DEA. She stressed the inportance
of | ooking at each uni que project.

She said that DCCED has noticed that many of the issues in the
ports and harbor study are very simlar to the issues that DCCED
faced with sanitation: the need for coordinated planning,
expensive projects that need to be phased in, and the need to
often augnent nanagenent capabilities at the community |evel.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -14- March 24, 2011



She noted that the Denali Conmmission took a lead role in
coordinating the Rural Utility Sanitation Commttee to work
t hrough these issues.

4:23:50 PM
COW SSI ONER BELL proceeded by answering sone of the specific
guestions that DCCED was asked to address.

The first question was how DCCED assists many of the small
communities with port and harbor projects. She acknow edged the
work of the Division of Comunity and Regional Affairs (DCRA),
whi ch has hel ped conmunities build its managenent capacity in
order to develop and nmaintain its infrastructure. She pointed
out that DCCED is part of the nulti-agency effort working on
SDM and this information is critical for port planning. DCCED
al so admnisters many grants to ports and harbors: sone funded
through the legislature, the Al aska Conmmunity and Devel opnent
Bl ock grants, or ot her specific prograns. One  of t he
recommendations listed in the report was to |ook into a
threshold grant [for ports and harbors]. She noted that DCCED is
currently working with OMB [OFfice of Managenent and Budget] to
figure out how grants can be streamlined through DCRA. She
expl ained that, currently, no matter the grant anount, the sane
set of paperwork is needed.

She continued that the D vision of Econom c Developnent is an
area where DCCED is looking to help strengthen the industries
that hel p nake these ports and harbors econom cally viable. She
reiterated that AIDEA's work is noted in the report. She said
that in Skagway the Red Dog Mne funds sone of the Dbusinesses
that help strengthen the user groups of ports and harbors.

She explained that the Al aska Energy Authority's (AEA) work wth
the bulk fuel tank farns, while not directly engaged in port and
har bor devel opnent, are located in Alaska's river and coastal
ar eas.

4:26: 02 PM

COWM SSI ONER BELL continued with the second question DCCED was
asked to address with regard to giving tax powers to port
authorities. She explained that this topic needs to be nore
fully explored and there are pros and cons with it. She said
that giving tax powers to port authorities would help create a
dedi cated funding source for port and harbor devel opnent.
However, it is inportant that a municipality figure out what the
overall needs for a community are and where its funds should be
al | ocat ed.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 15- March 24, 2011



She said that, finally, DCCED was asked to speak about maritine
policy. She explained that, to her know edge, the state does not
have a naritime policy and that nmarine-related issues are
addressed through a nunber of individual agencies and nulti-
agency efforts. She added that coastal and river areas are very
different throughout the state wth regard to seasonality,
climate, population, and the types of industrial opportunities
avai |l abl e.

She concluded that, as a state, there is a great effort to make
sure that the public is aware of these nmaritine issues, that
there is sustainable use of Alaska's bodies of water, and
| eadership in national and international maritime affairs 1is
pr onot ed.

4:28:25 PM

CHAIR COLSON said that while it is okay to build a port at a
sight, there has to be surface transportation to bring the goods
to the port. For instance, there are a |lot of areas that would
work well for a deep water port, but the area is not connected
to any place. He asked if DCCED has given any consideration to
surface transportation.

COW SSI ONER BELL replied that DCCED | ooked at the report and
recognized that the linkage from a port to places such as
Anchorage or the Matanuska Susitna Valley is critical. She
stressed the need to think about ports and harbors in a broader
context. She acknow edged that "DOT is a big piece of that."

4:29:43 PM
BOB PAW.OWSKI, Legislative Liaison, Detail for Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Denal i Comm ssi on, di scussed t he Denal

Comm ssion's role in the developnent of ports and harbors in
Al aska. He paraphrased the follow ng piece of witten testinony:

The [Alaska Regional Ports: Planning for Alaska's
Ports and harbors] report is very clear that waterways
are vitally inportant to the state as nbst comunities
depend heavily on novenent of general cargo, building
materials, and freight. The lack of roads to and
anongst nost communities further enphasizes the
i nportance waterways and ports, harbors and barge
| andings at each comunity fulfill. And finally this
is conplicated by the short navigational season that
depends on efficient and cost effective operations.
The Denali Conmi ssion, as an independent Federal

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -16- March 24, 2011



Agency with state and federal co-chairs, received
program aut horization and funding in 2005 as part of
SAFETEA-LU transportation bill for both road and
wat er f r ont progr ans. The waterfront devel opnent
program addresses port, harbor, and other waterfront
needs for rural communities. The focus areas are
important to regional ports, and construction of barge
| andi ngs and docking facilities.

O particular nerit, since 2005 the Denali Conm ssion
has invested over $50 million in waterfront projects
t hroughout Al aska. Recently, the Denali Conm ssion
approved $14,826,397 in funding for 25 FY2011
wat erfront devel opnent projects across the state. The
approval for innovative barge nooring points in
various communities on the Kuskokwi m and Yukon rivers
is an excellent exanple of partnerships in innovative
ways to support local communities on Alaska's rivers.
These points were developed in partnership with the US
Ar ny Cor ps of Engi neers Al aska District, t he
communities, and the tug and barge industry to allow
the offloading of freight and fuel in a noored and
nore efficient manner, thus saving the comunities
nmoney and mnimzing disruption to the river
environment (i.e. shoaling problens and ot her damage).

The Denali Conmm ssion encourages the commttee to
further explore plans for inproving the harbors and
river |andings, including opportunities for public

private partnerships that support [|ocal comunities
with a conbination of federal and non-federal funds

Having staff actively involved in the "Planning for
Al aska's Regional Ports and Harbors" study and the
2008 and 2010 Al aska Ports workshops, we understand
the needs identified in this report and offer our
waterfront and comunity devel opnment expertise in
helping to sustain rural Alaska conmunities that
depend on navi gabl e wat ers.

4:32: 39 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked what federal funds can be counted on in the
near future for building port facilities.

MR. PAW.OASKI replied that it is difficult to see what wll
happen. He noted that congressionally directed funds with bills
that are under reauthorization are being discussed. Currently
the safety lieu is being continued through 2013. However, there

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -17- March 24, 2011



is a chance that the FTA [Federal Transit Adm nistration] nobney
of $5 million per year, may be slipping out under a different
cl ause.

4:33:46 PM

LARRY COITER, CEQ, Aleutian Island Conmmunity Devel opnent
Association (APICDA) and Chair, Western Alaska Community
Devel opnent Association (WACDA), said that the state is very
reliant on [harbors] in Al aska, particularly in rural and
western Alaska. He said "if we don't have a [harbor], the
viability of the conmmunity is greatly at risk." He noted that
there is a very inportant distinction between a port and a
harbor. A port is a facility that receives cargo for subsequent
transport out and is typically located in larger communities. A
harbor is a facility that serves as a key infrastructure for a
community and is typically located in smaller comunities. He
stressed that harbors serve as the backbone for economc
stability in western Alaska. He explained that it 1is very
conpetitive to try and get noney for harbors, particularly in
Washington D.C. He said that what the state is doing in
conjunction with USACE, with regard to the particular project at

hand, is long overdue. It is inportant to have a logically
wor ked-out programthat will help identify: "what we want to do,
where we are going to do it, and why we're going to do it." He
recogni zed that the state will need financial help to devel op

ports and harbors.

4. 36: 38 PM

MR. COITER said that with regard to ports of refuge and safety
there is a lot of attention focused on the arctic and the need
to devel op deep water ports. However, the Al eutian Chain already
has well over 2,000 vessels transiting it; this has been noted
in the Planning for Alaska's Regional Ports and Harbors report.
He explained that in the past five or six years there have been
at least four mmjor groundings in the Aleutian Islands and
several near m sses.

He said that safety is very inportant and harbors play a key
role. He noted that in the Bering Sea during the snow crab
fisheries, there is one port, Saint Paul, which gets iced over
in the winter. He explained that this neans there is no place
for vessels to go during a storm He said that these issues can
be avoided when a port and harbor plan has been properly
devel oped for Al aska.

4:38:51 PM
SENATOR MENARD sai d she appreciates his comments.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 18- March 24, 2011



CHAIR OLSON asked what the plan is for funding sonme of these
capital projects and whether the CDQ (Community Devel opnent
Quota) [of APICDA] plans on getting involved in sonme of these
proj ects.

MR. COITER replied that APICDA has in the past and plans to
continue doing so. He explained that the association has al ways
put up $1 mllion or nore into such projects. For exanmple, in
Saint George APICDA has already put over $3 mllion into the
port. He noted that NSEDC [Norton Sound Economn c Devel opnent
Cor poration] and ot her groups have invested simlar anounts.

CHAI R OLSON said the House and Senate Finance commttee has had
a lot of discussions on harbor maintenance. He asked what kind
of involvenment the CDQ of APICDA is doing with regard to this
t opi c.

MR. COITER replied that APICDA has not faced that issue yet.
However, he said "if a harbor goes in then we're going to have
nmoney in that harbor.” He noted that economic activity wll
develop as a result of that harbor. Finally, he explained that
if the viability of that harbor in the future is contingent upon
APl CDA funds the association will provide it.

4:40: 44 PM

MATT GANLEY, Vice President, Land and Resources, Bering Straits
Native Corporation (BSNC), discussed the inportance of obtaining
Port Clarence as a potential port of refuge and spill response
in Bering Strait. He explained that spill response directly
affects BSNC shareholders and Bering Strait comunities. He
expressed the corporation's interest on the ports and harbors
report and the related studies on the ports of refuge. He
expl ained that None is the hub for the Bering Strait region; it
has a port that may or may not be able to take deeper vessels
depending on what nodification could be made there. BSNC
selected Port Carence, the 2,000 acres that are under mlitary
wi thdrawal , in 1976. The port was deconm ssioned on a fast-track
this past summer by the Coast CGuard. He explained that this
facility is incredible with an inpressive infrastructure, which
now |ies abandoned. The corporation is seeking to receive that
| and under angst. However, he explained that depending on the
Coast GQuard's plans, the property wll not be in private
ownership for 20 years. Currently, BSNC is pursuing every
possi bl e opti on.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -19- March 24, 2011



VR. GANLEY explained that this situation opens up the
opportunity for a PPP. NSEDC, which is the CDQ for the region,
woul d have an interest in the facility, particularly with regard
to safety and the fisheries that could open up. Because of the
| ocation of the facility (about hal fway between Nonme and Bering
Straits), it would nake sense to have this port operational to
respond to vessels in distress in Bering Strait. He concluded
that the corporation is concerned about receiving the property
wth a liability, since it currently |lies abandoned; the |onger
that it takes to receive that land, the greater the liability
will be.

4:45: 47 PM
CHAIR OLSON asked for confirmation that his expertise is in
ar chaeol ogy.

MR. GANLEY answered yes. He explained that he has been with the
BSNC for a long tinme and has dealt with a nunber of issues.

SENATOR MENARD asked for confirmation that the facility has been
dormant since the 1970's.

MR. GANLEY replied no; the land was selected in the 1970's under
the Alaska Native Land Cains Settlement Act. However, it was
withdrawn in the 1960's as a comunication site by the federa
government and the Coast Guard built its Loran Station there. He
explained that the Loran Mssion ended in 2010 and the Coast
Guard deconmm ssi oned the station.

SENATOR MENARD asked for confirmation that there is 7,000 feet
of runway.

MR. GANLEY replied yes.

SENATOR MENARD asked if there is a hangar out there.
MR. GANLEY replied no.

SENATOR MENARD asked if there was a school.

MR. GANLEY replied no; it was strictly a station to run the
[ Loran-C] tower.

SENATOR MENARD said that she feels strongly that infrastructures

like this should not go to waste. She asked what the |egislature
can do.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 20- March 24, 2011



MR. GANLEY answered that the Bering Straits Native Corporation
is discussing this with the congressional del egati on.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked what kind of land the facility is on
and whether it can be built on.

MR. GANLEY replied yes. He explained that the corporation
contracted a geonorphologist to take a look at the property
since there was concern that the |and m ght not have a |ong-term
life because t he property is not very hi gh. The
geonor phol ogi st's report stated that it's a very stable |andform
that, for the last 1,500 years, has not experienced nuch
er osi on.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked for confirmation that there is space
for 24 people to live.

MR. GANLEY replied yes.
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked how deep the port is.

MR. GANLEY answered that the water close to the point is deeper
than the port of None and is a deep water port. He explained
that while the spit is low, it would protect vessels. The
geography is very good as a port of refuge. He encouraged the
committee nenbers to ook at a map of the area.

CHAI R OLSON asked how deep the water is.
MR. GANLEY replied about 25 feet at the end of the spit.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if the plans are to have a town at
Port d arence.

MR. GANLEY replied not necessarily a town. He explained that
BSNC is in line to receive the property and |and under angst,
but it doesn't want to take it with liability. He reiterated
that he can't speak to what the Coast GGuard's plans are.
However, he explained that because of cuts to the Bureau of Land
Managenent, it wll be, optimstically, 2050, before Native
corporations receive its lands. He noted that this is the sane
situation for potential state |lands. He explained that the BSNC
hopes to seek legislation in Washington D.C. to expedite the
process. From a safety standpoint and for the econony of the
region the Bering Straits Native Corporation is conmtted to
take this on, M. Ganl ey expl ai ned.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -21- March 24, 2011



SENATOR MENARD commented that the response capability [of Port
Cl arence] is trenendous.

MR. GANLEY concurr ed.

4.:52:26 PM

MARK DAVIS, Oficer, Economc Developnent, Al aska Industrial
Devel opnent & Export Authority (AlIDEA), Departnent of Comrerce

Community and Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED), said that AIDEA is
very active in the Public Private Partnerships (PPP) arena. The
Red Dog Mne's DeLong Muntain transportation system port and
the current plan for the port of Skagway both involve a PPP
structure. He explained that there is also a potential port
project in Seward that would involve using private and public
f unds.

He said that with regard to other finance nechanisns there are
several. One nechanism is called "patient capital,” and is a
form of structuring debt. He noted that the DeLong Muntain
Transportation Corridor is an exanple of this type of funding

He continued that another nechanism for funding is a Florida SIB
(State Infrastructure Bank). Yet another mnmechanism is federal
tax credits, under New Market Tax Credit. Finally, another idea
for funding, which is not nentioned in the Planning for Al aska's
Regi onal Ports and Harbors report, is Bel ow Market Loans, which
is used by the California Industrial Devel opnent Bank. He noted
that while AIDEA does not have that authority, sone devel opnent
aut horities do.

He comented that AIDEA is happy with the review that it has
recei ved.

MR. DAVIS noted that the Port of Skagway was classified, in the
report, as a "subregional port,”™ which AIDEA respectfully
di sagrees with. He explained that the definition of a
subregional port is located in the introduction of the report on
page five and states:

subregi onal hubs do not directly send or receive goods
fromoutside the state...

He said that the Port of Skagway is currently exporting
substantial amunts of ore concentrate from the Mnto M ne.
Currently there are 12 shipnments per year, and by 2018 shipnents
are estimated to increase to about 50 shipments per year. He
explained that AIDEA believes this wll occur because of the
devel opnment of three major mning projects. He explained that in

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -22- March 24, 2011



addition to these projects AIDEA is in comunication wth
several mnes in Canada about nmaki ng Skagway an inport harbor.

He explained that, with this in mnd, the governor has requested
a $10 nmillion appropriation for Skagway, which would build a
part of the infrastructure that can't generate revenue. AlDEA

woul d then put in about $65 mllion through bonding, along with
other private partnership conmtnments. This nmeans that only a
small anmount of general funds would be used for the port

devel opnent .

4:57: 06 PM

CHRI STINE KLEIN, Executive Vice President and COO Calista
Corporation, Bethel, AK said the Planning for Al aska's Regi ona
Ports and Harbors report is an excellent start. She enphasized
that both ports and harbors in Alaska are absolutely essenti al
for access, delivering supplies to rural communities, and
commerce. She explained that one thing the state has relied on
is the US Rivers and Harbors Act, developed in the 1860's, which
gave USACE authority over all ports and harbors. However, that
program was never intended to address or fund all of the ports
and harbors in the United States, in particular sonme of the
uni que situations found in Al aska.

She noted that while there are very few ports there are hundreds
of harbors, which are depended upon by villages and thousands of
citizens. Mst of these harbors are not eligible for any federal
aid. She explained that there is no funding programto deal wth
Al aska's ports or harbors and this has been underenphasized in
the report. She added that this is one of the larger policy
issues that state legislators are probably going to need to
address. She noted that, for as nmany ports and harbors that the
state has, the funding cycles within DOl has a very intermttent
muni ci pal harbor matching grant and deferred maintenance
program This program is funded year-to-year and averages about
$5 mllion to cover all ports and harbors in Al aska. She
stressed the need for the state to have a designated program or
funds to rely on. She suggested that if the report could, when
it is finalized, better summarize sone of the solutions and
directions this will help everyone in the future.

She noted that there were two areas within the report that she
found to be issues. The first issue is the lack of regular state
fundi ng sources; whether this is user fees or taxes. The second
issue is the need for a constitutional amendnent or
authorization to enable the state to dedicate, accept, and
utilize funds for transportation needs. She noted that this was

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -23- March 24, 2011



in Alaska's constitution at one tinme, but has since been
changed. She explained that this would enable there to be sone
consi stent statew de conprehensive planning and address sone of
the construction and renovation needed for reliable access and
econom c activity, particularly in rural areas. She noted that
nost states in the nation have sone type of transportation trust
fund or core program to suppl enent its transportation
infrastructure. Alaska is one of the few states that does not
have this.

5:02: 50 PM

M5. KLEI N expl ai ned that because the Yukon Kuskokwi mregion is a
river delta, it is nmore of a river port than a maritinme port
Emmonak and Al akunuk is the other site where shipnents enter the
Yukon River from the ocean. She explained that sone of the
difficulty has been in developing and funding of ports; which
requires high-intensive funding. Small comunities in western
and northwestern Alaska cannot take on those types of costs.
However, these regions are probably the nost reliant on this
node of transportation.

She noted that with respect to sone of the industries, which the
Calista Corporation has hopes of developing, maritime and river
barge shipping is knowmm to be the cheapest node  of
transportation, especially for heavy comodities. She said that
she is pleased with the reconmmendation in the report to
establish a |lead agency or group that would hel p coordinate the
many entities. She said that there should be an effort nade by
the state to not only pull together these groups but to
prioritize some of the needed ports and hubs in the state. She
reiterated the inportance of having nore stable funding, rather
than relying on federal grants and earmarKks.

Finally, she explained that with regard to port financing there
are options that could be mnade easier for public private
partnership, such as tax incentives.

5:08: 05 PM

SENATOR MENARD commented that she appreciates the Planning for
Al aska's Regional Ports and Harbors report and that it is
noteworthy that the final report will not be issued until after
this neeting. She said that the SDM presentation was
educational and that the legislature needs to look into funding
the mapping for the rest of the state.

CHAIR OLSON asked Ms. Klein what her position is with Calista
Cor por ati on.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 24- March 24, 2011



M5. KLEIN answered the chief operating officer and executive
vi ce president.

CHAI R OLSON said there has been sone discussion about a port on
Donlin Creek above Bethel in order to access sone of the oil
reserves in the area. He asked what Calista's involvenment wll
be in that port.

M5. KLEIN replied that at this point it would be a private
devel opnment. She said that she could not speak to the funding
for the Donlin Creek project. She said that with regard to the
| ocation the Birch Tree Crossing near Aniak and a site near the
village of Crooked Creek are being considered. She noted that
the Calista Corporation's type of involvenent depends on the
site that is chosen.

CHAIR OLSON explained that he brings the question forward
because there has been a request to the state fromthe community
of Akiak to build a port in conjunction with the Donlin Creek
project. He asked if Calista is involved with this.

M5. KLEIN answered that the Donlin Creek devel opnent recently
had a request for proposals for sites on the Kuskokwim River.
These canme from communities and tribal groups that have |and
avai lable that mght be deened as a possible port site. She
noted that many conmunities submtted letters of interest.

CHAI R OLSON cl osed public testinony.
5:11:40 PM

There being no further business to cone before the committee,
Chair O son adjourned the nmeeting at 5:11 p.m

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -25- March 24, 2011



